
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
           AUGUST 1, 2016 

                     MONDAY, 6:30 P.M. 
  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

  
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

July 18, 2016, Regular meeting 
  

3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
None 
  

4. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
   
Ordinance No. 06-16  Amending Code of Ordinance Section 26-2(D) exempting certain 

property from the Community Redevelopment Area design 
standards              (First Reading) 

 
Ordinance No. 07-16  Amending Code of Ordinance Section 3-2 regarding the hours  

     of sale of alcoholic beverages         (First Reading) 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS* 
 

A. Authorization to submit FEMA Alternate Project for the west golf course bunkers to FEMA 
 

B. Approval of modification to the City’s solid waste contract with Allied Waste to exclude glass 
from the list of recyclable materials effective as of October 1, 2016 

 
C. Approval for Brantley and Associates to prepare an appraisal for three parcels which comprise 

Tiger Point Golf and Country Club 
 

D. Authorization to contact design firms relative to preparing concepts for the potential 
improvement of the property at the east end of Navy Cove Boulevard 
 

E. Recommendation to set tentative millage rate for Fiscal Year 2017 
 

F. Authorization to pay invoice 333710 in the amount of $6,441.37 to Galloway /Johnson- 
Tompkins Burr and Smith (GJTBS) 

 
G. Authorization to pay invoices 96223 in the amount of $235.70 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, 

Hinds and Sheppard P.A.  
 
*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  
If any citizen wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the 
Council immediately. 

 



August 1, 2016, Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 
 
 

  If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this 
meeting or public hearing, such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The 
public is invited to comment on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition 
from the Chair.   If you are a person with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate 
in a public hearing you are entitled to the provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City 
Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to 
the date of the public hearing.  
 
 

6. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A. Approval for City’s membership with Florida’s Great Northwest  

 
B. Approval for staff to prepare an informational letter to City residents regarding the Local Option 

Sales Tax initiative 
 

 
7. NEW ITEMS  
 
8. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
9. PUBLIC FORUM  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
    

















EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JULY 27, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							July	27,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council held an Executive Meeting at Gulf Breeze City Hall on 
Wednesday, July 27, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson, Councilman 
David G. Landfair, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:    
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 

 
A. Approval of Ordinance No. 06-16 amending Code of Ordinances Section 26-2(D) 

exempting certain property from the Community Redevelopment Area design standards 
 
Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated July 20, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council approve Ordinance No. 06-16 on the First 
Reading on August 1, 2016, and schedule the Second Reading and Public Hearing on 
August 15, 2016.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place 
Ordinance No. 06-16 on the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda for First Reading.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
B. Approval of Ordinance No. 07-16 amending Code of Ordinance Section 3-2 regarding 

the hours of sale of alcoholic beverages  
 

 Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated July 20, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That The City Council approve Ordinance No. 07-16 on First 
Reading on August 1, 2016, and schedule the Second Reading and Public Hearing on 
August 15, 2016.   
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place Ordinance 
No. 07-16 on the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda for First Reading.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   The ordinance will be 
revised and provided to the Council for consideration at the August 1, 2016, Regular meeting.   
 

C. Authorization to submit FEMA Alternate Project for the west golf course bunkers to 
FEMA 
 
Reference: Operations Consultant memo dated July 20, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council instruct staff to submit the proposed 
expenditures as the Alternate Projects for PW 945.   



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JULY 27, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							July	27,	2016	 Page	2	
 

   
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the item on 
the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda for approval.  Councilwoman Bookout 
seconded.   The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
D. Approval of modification to the City’s solid waste contract with Allied Waste to exclude 

glass from the list of recyclable materials effective as of October 1, 2016 
 
 Reference: City Manager memo dated July 21, 2016 
  

Recommendation: 1)  That the City Council approve the change in the City’s solid 
waste contract with Allied Waste relative to recycling glass; and 2) That October 1, 2016, 
be the official start date for the change.   

 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation subject to the City 
Attorney’s approval of the contract amendment and place the item on the August 1, 2016, 
Regular Council meeting agenda for approval.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.   The vote 
for approval was unanimous. 

 
E. Approval for Brantley and Associates to prepare three appraisals for certain parcels of the 

Tiger Point Golf and Country Club 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated July 21, 2016   
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the proposal from Brantley and 
Associates to prepare appraisals of the Tiger Point Golf Club property.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the item 
on the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda for approval.  Councilman Landfair 
seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous.   
 

F. Approval for City’s membership with Florida’s Great Northwest  
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated July 21, 2016   
 
Bruce Vredenburg, Investor Relations Chairperson, spoke on behalf of Florida’s Great 
Northwest.   
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council approve expenditure of $10,000 to join 
Florida’s Great Northwest.   

 
Councilman Landfair made a motion that the item be tabled for more discussion at the August 1, 
2016, Regular Council meeting.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.   The vote for approval was 4-1 
with Mayor Pro Tem Henderson dissenting. 
 

G. Approval for staff to prepare an informational letter to City residents regarding the Local 
Option Sales Tax initiative 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JULY 27, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							July	27,	2016	 Page	3	
 

 
Reference:   City Manager memo dated July 21, 2016   
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council authorize staff to prepare an informational 
letter to City residents regarding the local option sales tax initiative.   
 
Staff was instructed to draft an informational letter for Council approval.  Staff will 
endeavor to have the letter ready for approval at the August 1, 2016, Regular Council 
meeting.   
 

H. Authorization to contact design firms relative to preparing concepts for the potential 
improvement of the property at the east end of Navy Cove Boulevard  
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated July 21, 2016   
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council direct staff to contact design firms relative to 
preparing concepts for the potential improvement of the property at the east end of Navy 
Cove Boulevard.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the item 
on the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded. The 
vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

I. Recommendation to set tentative millage rate for Fiscal Year 2017 
 

Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated July 21, 2016   
 
The City Manager advised that the City needs to provide the Property Appraiser’s office 
with the tentative millage rate by August 4, 2016.   The staff proposes to keep the current 
millage rate of 1.9723 for the upcoming fiscal year.  If, during budget workshops, we 
decide to adjust the millage rate, we can adjust it lower than that rate but cannot not 
increase it above the rate submitted to the Property Appraiser.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the item 
on the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda for approval.  Councilwoman Fitch 
seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

J. Authorization to pay invoice 333710 in the amount of $6,441.37 to Galloway /Johnson- 
Tompkins Burr and Smith (GJTBS) 

 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated July 21, 2016  
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve payment of invoice no. 333710 in 
the amount of $6,441.37 to Galloway/Johnson law firm (GJTBS).   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JULY 27, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							July	27,	2016	 Page	4	
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the item on 
the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting agenda for approval.  Councilwoman Bookout 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

K. Approval for the City Council to meet as the Board of Directors of Gulf Breeze Financial 
Services on August 1, 2016, and authorize the payment of invoice 62713 in the amount of 
$6,891.50 to Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. 

 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated July 21, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the Gulf 
Breeze Financial Services (GBFS) on August 1, 2016, to approve payment of invoice no. 
62713 in the amount of $6,891.50 to Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the item 
on the August 1, 2016, Board of Directors of Gulf Breeze Financial Services meeting agenda for 
approval.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   

 
L. Authorization to pay invoices 96223 in the amount of $235.70 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, 

Hinds and Sheppard P.A. and that the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on August 1, 2016, and authorize the payment of 
invoice 96224 in the amount of $3,948.17 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and 
Sheppard P.A. 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated July 21, 2016 
 
The City Manager advised that there was a question on one of the invoices.  He contacted 
Mr. Smolker and will have an answer in time for Monday’s Regular Council meeting.   
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve payment of invoice 96223 in the 
amount of $235.70 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. and  
 
That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency on August 1, 2016, and authorize the payment of invoice 96224 in the amount of 
$3,948.17 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. 
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the above 
items on the August 1, 2016, Regular Council meeting and Community Redevelopment Agency 
agendas for approval.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 
 

M. Authorization for the City Council to meet as the Board of Directors for the Community 
Redevelopment Agency on August 1, 2016, and authorize payment of invoice 222984 in 
the amount of $14,972.29 to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin (VHB). 

 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated July 21, 2016 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  JULY 27, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							July	27,	2016	 Page	5	
 

Recommendation:  That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on Monday, August 1, 2016, and approve payment 
of invoice no. 222984 in the amount of $14,972.29 to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin (VHB). 
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation and place the above 
item on the August 1, 2016, Community Redevelopment Agency agenda for approval.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
NEW ITEMS:   None  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: None  
 
PUBLIC FORUM:   
 
Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Avenue, apologized if he gave the impression that he came up with the 
idea of moving the traffic signal light at Highway 98 and Northcliffe to Andrew Jackson Trail.   
Mr. Turpin also commented about the City’s municipal taxes.  He encouraged the Council to 
carefully considered monetary requests from organizations versus the return on investment. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Councilwoman Bookout spoke regarding an issue Sam Lundy is having with the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection and wanted to know if there was a way the City could 
assist him.  The City Manager advised Mr. Lundy that it might be helpful to speak with an 
environmental attorney.    
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson discussed an email he had received from a resident regarding golf 
carts on City streets.  The Council would like the Police Department to enforce the statutes 
regarding golf carts.  The City Manager advised that officers are stopping children who are 
operating golf carts in an unsafe manner and contacting their parents.   With regards to Florida’s 
Great Northwest, Mayor Pro Tem Henderson said that he is not willing to give money to an 
organization that pays its employees as much as reported.   
 
ADJOURNMENT  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:45p.m. 
 







ORDINANCE NO. 07-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, 
PERTAINING TO THE HOURS OF SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES; 
AMENDING SECTION 3-2 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Gulf Breeze has adopted certain rules and regulation relative to the 

sale, serving and consumption of alcoholic beverages; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these rules and regulations provide certain hours of the day during which the 

sale of alcoholic beverages shall be allowed; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to amend these rules to expand the hours of sales 

to more closely match the hours of sale, serving and consumption of alcoholic beverages in the 
unincorporated parts of South Santa Rosa County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Gulf Breeze, 

Florida, as follows:  
 
SECTION 1 - Section 3-2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
Sec. 3-2. - Hours of sale.  
 
(a) On Premises Consumption: Except as otherwise provided in this section, no alcoholic 

beverages may be sold, consumed, served, or permitted to be sold, consumed, or served by any 
vendor or at any business or establishment in the city between the hours of 12:010 a.m. 
(midnight) and 6:598:00 a.m. on the following day on Monday Sunday through FridayThursday 
and 12:591:00 a.m. and 6:598:00 a.m. on Saturday and Sunday.; provided, however, restaurants 
are also allowed to sell alcoholic beverages in the city each night of the week until 12:00 a.m. 
(midnight).  

(b) Off Premises Consumption: Notwithstanding the preceding Section 3-2.(a)sentence, except 
as otherwise provided in this section a vendor, business, or establishment holding an appropriate 
license under state law and having received a certificate of compliance from the city for the sale 
of beer and wine for off-premises consumption may sell beer and wine, but not liquor, for off-
premises consumption between the hours of 10:010 p.m. and 7:598:00 a.m. on the following 
day.  

 (b) No alcoholic beverages may be sold, consumed, served, or permitted to be sold, consumed or 
served at any business or establishment in the city between the hours of 12:00 midnight on 
Saturday night of each week until 12:00 noon the following Sunday morning.  

 

 

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt, Italic



ORDINANCE 07-16 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 SECTION 2 - SEVERABILITY  
 

If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by any court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, invalid or void, such holding shall not in any 
manner affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 3 - CONFLICT   
 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to control and prevail over any ordinance 
or portion thereof in conflict with the terms hereof.  

 
SECTION 4 - EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council.  

 
PASSED ON THE FIRST READING ON THE 1st DAY OF AUGUST,  2016. 
 
ADVERTISED ON THE      DAY OF               , 2016. 
 
PASSED ON THE SECOND READING ON THE      DAY OF               , 2016. 

 
 
  City of Gulf Breeze 
 

 
By:___________________________                 

               Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY:  
 
 
__________________________ 
Leslie Guyer, City Clerk or 
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 












	August 1  2016 Regular Meeting
	July 18 2016 Regular Mtg Minutes
	July 27 2016 Executive Meeting Minutes
	Ordinance No 06-16
	Ordinance 07-16 - Beverage Sale Hours revised 07 29 2016
	FL Great Northwest Membership

